
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Planning Applications 
Committee Agenda 

 

 
  

 

Members of the Public are welcome to attend this Meeting. 
 

 

1.   Introductions/Attendance at Meeting  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 

3.   To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on 9 April 2025 (Pages 3 - 
10) 

 
4.   Introduction to Procedure by the Assistant Director, Law and Governance's 

Representative (Pages 11 - 12) 
 

5.   Applications for Planning Permission and Other Consents under the Town and Country 
Planning Act and Associated Legislation (Pages 13 - 14) 

 
 (a)   Land at 10 Chatsworth Terrace, Darlington, DL1 5DH (Pages 15 - 30) 

 

6.   SUPPLEMENTARY ITEM(S) (if any) which in the opinion of the Chair of this Committee are 
of an urgent nature and can be discussed at this meeting  
 

7.   Questions  

PART III 
 

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

8.   To consider the Exclusion of the Public and Press –  

1.30 pm, Wednesday, 7 May 2025 

Council Chamber, Town Hall, Darlington DL1 5QT 

Public Document Pack



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

RECOMMENDED - That, pursuant to Sections 100B(5) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the ensuing item on 

the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
exclusion paragraph 7 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

9.   Complaints Received and Being Considered Under the Council's Approved Code of 
Practice as of 28 April 2025 (Exclusion Paragraph No. 7) – Report of the Executive 
Director, Economy and Public Protection (Pages 31 - 42) 
 

10.   SUPPLEMENTARY ITEM(S) (IF ANY) which in the opinion of the Chair of this Committee 
are of an urgent nature and can be discussed at this meeting  
 

11.   Questions 
 
 

     
Amy Wennington 

Assistant Director Law and Governance 
 
Monday, 28 April 2025 
 

Town Hall  
Darlington. 

 
Membership 

Councillors Ali, Allen, Anderson, Bartch, Beckett, Cossins, Haszeldine, Holroyd, Kane, Laing, 
Lawley, Lee, McCollom and Tostevin. 

 
If you need this information in a different language or format or you have any other queries on 

this agenda please contact Paul Dalton, Democratic and Elections Manager, Resources and 
Governance Group, during normal office hours 8.30 a.m. to 4.45 p.m. Mondays to Thursdays 

and 8.30 a.m. to 4.15 p.m. Fridays E-Mail: paul.dalton@darlington.gov.uk or telephone  01325 
405805. 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 9 April 2025 
 

PRESENT – Councillors Haszeldine (Chair), Allen, Anderson, Bartch, Beckett, Cossins, Holroyd, 
Kane, Laing, Lawley, Lee, McCollom and Tostevin 

 
APOLOGIES – Councillor Ali 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE – Dave Coates (Head of Planning, Development and Environmental 
Health), Arthur Howson (Engineer (Traffic Management)), Andrew Errington (Lawyer 
(Planning)), James McAllister (Democratic Officer) and Hannah Miller (Democratic Officer) 
 

 
PA52 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest reported at the meeting. 

 
PA53 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THIS COMMITTEE HELD ON 5 MARCH 2025 

 
 RESOLVED – That the Minutes of this Committee held on 5 March 2025 be approved as a 

correct record. 
 

PA54 APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION AND OTHER CONSENTS UNDER THE TOWN 
AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT AND ASSOCIATED LEGISLATION 

 
(1)  FIELD AT OSGR E435307 N513463, YARM ROAD, MIDDLETON ST GEORGE (21/00380/RM1) 

 
 21/00380/RM1 – Application for reserved matters approval relating to appearance, 

landscaping, layout and scale for the erection of 96 dwellings and associated works attached 
to outline permission 17/01195/OUT dated 30 May 2019 (Outline planning application for 
the erection of up to 330 residential dwellings (Use Class C3), with associated landscaping 
and engineering works, 3 new retail units and provision of a new single form Primary School). 
 

(In making its decision, the Committee took into consideration the Planning Officer’s report 
(previously circulated), the views of the Council’s Highway Engineer, Transport Policy Officer, 
Environmental Health Officer, Local Lead Flood Authority, Ecologist or Natural England 
subject to conditions. The Committee also took into consideration the views of Teesside 

International Airport and Middleton St George Parish Council. Eleven letters of objection 
were taken into consideration, alongside the views of the Applicant’s Agent and an objector, 
whom the Committee heard). 
 

RESOLVED – That reserved matters relating to details of appearance, landscaping, layout, 
and scale pursuant to outline planning permission 17/01195/OUT be approved subject to 

receipt of the signed Unilateral Undertaking regarding the Footpath 3 Improvement Work 
and the following conditions: 
 

1. Unless otherwise confirmed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development 

hereby approved should be carried out in accordance with the following plans:  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Site Layout Plan 1287-BEL-100 Rev. AC  

Boundary Treatment Plan 1287-BEL-101 Rev. E  
Adoption Plan 1287-BEL-102 Rev. E  

Parking and Bin Location Plan 1287-BEL-104 Rev. E  
Cycle Storage Location Plan 1287-BEL-105 Rev. C  

Chandler – Floor Plans CH-3B-2S-P1 Rev. A  
Chandler – Elevations CH-3B-2S-CB-E  
Mason - Floor Plans MA-3B-2S-P1  
Mason – Elevations MA-3B-2S-CB-E  
Sawyer - Floor Plans SY-3B-2S-P1  
Sawyer – Elevations SY-3B-2S-CB-E  
Scrivener - Floor Plans SC-4B-2S-P1 Rev. A  

Scrivener – Elevations SC-4B-2S-CB-E Rev. A  
Cutler – Floor Plans CU-4B-2S-P1  

Cutler – Elevations CU-4B-2S-CB-E  
Bowyer – Floor Plans BO-4B-2S-P1 Rev. A  

Bowyer – Elevations BO-4B-2S-CB-E  
Forester – Floor Plans FO-4B-2S-P1  

Forester – Elevations FO-4B-2S-CB-E  
Lorimer – Floor Plans LO-4B-2S-P1  

Lorimer – Elevations LO-4B-2S-CB-E  
Goldsmith – Floor Plans GO-4B-2S-P1.  

Goldsmith – Elevations GO-4B-2S-CB-E  
Draper – Floor Plans DR-5B-2S-P1  

Draper – Elevations DR-5B-2S-CB-E Rev. A  
Bosworth – Floor Plans BOS/2017/02 

Bosworth – Elevations BOS/2017/002  
Plane – Floor Plans A/1796CB/00/CB/01  

Plane - Elevations A/1796CB/00/CB/02  
Single Garage – Floor Plans /10/DET/01 Rev. C  
Single Garage – Elevations 00/CB/R2/01 Rev. C  
Double Garage – Floor Plans A/436/10/DET/01 Rev. B  
Double Garage – Elevations A/436/00/CB/R1/01 Rev. B  

Landscape Softworks Sheet 1 of 5 142928-PL-8001-A-A1LV Rev. C  
Landscape Softworks Sheet 2 of 5 142928-PL-8002-A-A1LV Rev. C  
Landscape Softworks Sheet 3 of 5 142928-PL-8003-A-A1LV Rev. C  
Landscape Softworks Sheet 4 of 5 142928-PL-8004-A-A1LV Rev. C  

Landscape Softworks Sheet 5 of 5 142928-PL-8005-A-A1LV Rev. C 
 

REASON - To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the planning 

permission.  

2. Prior to the first occupation of the development, written confirmation, in the form of a 

countersigned Final Allocation Notice or otherwise, that 138.89 Nutrient Credits have 
been purchased shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON - To ensure the development is nutrient neutral in accordance with the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

 

Page 4



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

3. The proposed water efficiency measures including the appropriate fittings shall be 

installed within each dwelling prior to their occupation to ensure the daily water usage 
per person per day does not exceed 107 litres and shall be maintained as such thereafter. 

 
REASON - To ensure the development is nutrient neutral in accordance with the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

 

4. Prior to the occupation of the homes where it is required, noise mitigation which meets 

or exceeds the specifications for the protection of the proposed residential 

accommodation from excessive road traffic noise as out in the Wardell Armstrong Noise 

Assessment (Reference:  GM13433 / 0001 / FINAL, dated July 2024), unless otherwise 

agreed in writing, shall be installed.  

 

For the avoidance of doubt, the mitigation includes:  

 Enhanced acoustic glazing and ventilation to be installed on the facades of properties as 

shown in figure 7 and 8 of the report. The specification of this glazing and ventilation 

must meet or exceed the specifications assumed in the calculation of Appendix C of the 

report and Table 4 of the report, unless otherwise agreed in writing. 

 An acoustic fence which meets the criteria set out in section 4.1.2 of the report shall be 

installed in the locations shown in figure 3 of the report, unless otherwise agreed in 

writing.  

The required mitigation measures will be installed prior to occupation of the dwellings 

where it is required then maintained and retained thereafter for the lifetime of the 

development.   

 

REASON – In the interests of residential amenity. 

 
(2)  FIELD AT OSGR E435307 N513463, YARM ROAD, MIDDLETON ST GEORGE (21/00475/RM1) 

 

 21/00475/RM1 – Application for reserved matters approval relating to appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale for the erection of 230 dwellings and associated works 
attached to outline permission 17/01195/OUT dated 30 May 2019 (Outline planning 
application for the erection of up to 330 residential dwellings (Use Class C3), with associated 

landscaping and engineering works, 3 new retail units and provision of a new single form 
Primary School). 
 
(In making its decision, the Committee took into consideration the Planning Officer’s report 

(previously circulated), the views of the Council’s Highway Engineer, Transport Policy Officer, 
Environmental Health Officer, Local Lead Flood Authority, Ecologist or Natural England 
subject to conditions. The Committee also took into consideration the views of Teesside 

International Airport and Middleton St George Parish Council. Three letters of objection were 
taken into consideration, alongside the views of the Applicant’s Agent whom the Committee 

heard). 
 

RESOLVED – That reserved matters relating to details of appearance, landscaping, layout, 
and scale pursuant to outline planning permission 17/01195/OUT be approved subject to 

Page 5



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

receipt of the signed Unilateral Undertaking regarding the Footpath 3 Improvement Work 

and the following conditions: 
 

1. Unless otherwise confirmed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development 
hereby approved should be carried out in accordance with the following plans:  

 
Site Location Plan 5199-NE-100  
Site Layout Plan Coloured 5199-NE-201 Rev. C 
Materials, Surface Finishes, Boundary Treatments Plan 5199-NE-250/01 Rev. B Character 
Area Plan 5199-NE-260 Rev. A  
Askern End Floor Plan ASK/END/0-001 Rev. A  
Askern End Elevation Plan ASK/END/0-002 Rev. A  

Askern End Elevation Plan (Green Edge) ASK/END/0-003 Rev. V1.0  
Askern Mid Floor Plan ASK/MID/0-001 Rev. A  

Askern Mid Elevation Plan ASK/MID/0-002 Rev. A  
Askern Mid Elevation Plan (Green Edge) ASK/MID/0-003 Rev. V1.1  

B3 End Floor Plan B3/0-001 Rev. A  
B3 End Elevation Plan B3/0-002 Rev. A  

B3 Mid Floor Plan B3/0-001 Rev. A  
B3 Mid Elevation Plan B3/0-002 Rev. A  

Baildon End Floor Plan BAI/0-001 Rev. A  
Baildon End Elevation Plan BAI/0-002 Rev. A  

Baildon End Elevation Plan BAI/0-003 Rev. V1.1  
Baildon Mid Floor Plan BAI/0-001 Rev. A  

Baildon Mid Elevation Plan BAI/0-002 Rev. A  
Cadeby Floor Plan CAD/0-001 Rev A  

Cadeby Elevation Plan CAD/ED/0-002 Rev. A  
Cadeby Elevation Plan (Green Edge) CAD/ED/0-003 Rev. V1.2  

Cookbury Floor Plan COO/DET/ED/0-001.5 Rev. A  
Cookbury Elevation Plan (Green Edge) COO/DET/ED/0-003 Rev. V1.1  
Dalton Floor Plan DAL/0-001 Rev. A  
Dalton Elevation Plan DAL/0-002 Rev. A  
Dalton Elevation Plan (Green Edge) DAL/0-003 Rev. V1.2  

Ferndale - End Floor Plan FER/END/0-001.5  
Ferndale - End Floor Plan Elevation Plan FER/END/ED/0-002.5 Rev. A  
Ferndale – End Elevation Plan (Green Edge) FER/END/ED/0-003  
Leyburn Floor Plan LET/DET/0-001 Rev. A  

Leyburn Elevation Plan (Green Edge) LET/DET/ED/0-003 Rev. A  
Oakwood Floor Plan OAK/0-001 Rev. A  
Oakwood Elevation Plan OAK/END/ED/0-002 Rev. A  
Oakwood Elevation Plan (Green Edge) OAK/END/ED/0-003 Rev. V1.2 

Ripley End Floor Plan RIP/END/0-001.5 Rev. A  
Ripley End Elevation Plan RIP/END/0-002.5 Rev. A  

Ripley End Alt Floor Plan RIP/ALT/0-001.5 Rev. B  
Ripley End Alt Elevation Plan RIP/ALT/0-002.5 Rev. A  
Ripley Mid Floor Plan RIP/MID/0-001.5 Rev. A  
Ripley Mid Elevation Plan RIP/MID/0-002.5 Rev. A  
Saltbury End Alt Floor Plan SAL/ALT/END/0-001.5 Rev. B  
Saltbury End Alt Elevation Plan SAL/ALT/0-002.5 Rev. B  

Page 6



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Saltbury End Alt Elevation Plan (Green Edge) SAL/ALT/0-003 Rev. V.1.1  

Saltbury End Floor Plan SAL/END/0-001.5 Rev. B  
Saltbury End Elevation Plan SAL/END/0-002.5 Rev. B  

Saltbury End Elevation Plan (Green Edge) SAL/END/0-003 Rev. V1.0  
Saltbury Mid Floor Plan SAL/MID/0-001.5 Rev. B  

Saltbury Mid Elevation Plan SAL/MID/0-002.5 Rev. B  
Saltbury Mid Elevation Plan (Green Edge) SAL/MID/0-003 Rev. V1.1  
Wentbridge Floor Plan WEN/0-001 Rev. A  
Wentbridge Elevation Plan WEN/0-002 Rev. A  
Wentbridge Elevation Plan (Green Edge) WEN/0-003 Rev. V1.2  
D2 End Floor Plan D2/END/0-001 Rev. A  
D2 End Elevation Plan D2/END/0-002 Rev. A  

E3 End Floor Plan E3/END/0-001.Rev. A  
E3 End Elevation Plan E3/END/0-002 Rev. A  

E3 Mid Floor Plan E3/MID/0-001 Rev. A  
E3 Mid Elevation Plan E3/MID/0-002 Rev. A  

Landscape Masterplan 4690 101 Rev. E  
Planting Plan Sheet 1 of 5 4690 201 Rev. A  

Planting Plan Sheet 2 of 5 4690 202 Rev. A  
Planting Plan Sheet 3 of 5 4690 203 Rev. A  

Planting Plan Sheet 4 of 5 4690 204 Rev. A  
Planting Plan Sheet 5 of 5 4690 205 Rev. A  

Trim Trail Design 4690 102 Rev. B 
 

REASON - To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the planning 

permission.  

2. Prior to the first occupation of the development, written confirmation, in the 

form of a countersigned Final Allocation Notice or otherwise, that 347.01 

Nutrient Credits have been purchased shall be submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

REASON - To ensure the development is nutrient neutral in accordance with the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

 

3. The proposed water efficiency measures including the appropriate fittings shall be 
installed within each dwelling prior to their occupation to ensure the daily water usage 
per person per day does not exceed 110 litres and shall be maintained as such thereafter. 

 
REASON - To ensure the development is nutrient neutral in accordance with the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. 

 

4. Prior to the occupation of any dwellings where it is required, as set out in the Wardell 

Armstrong Noise Impact Assessment (Reference:  GM13439 / Rev. 001 / FINAL, Report 
submitted with the application dated July 2024), a 1.8m high close boarded fence (or 
other effective barrier) of minimum thickness 25mm with a minimum overlap of 20mm 
between boards shall be erected on the boundary of all properties to the north of the 
development which back onto the railway line, unless otherwise agreed in writing. The 

Page 7



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

fence will be of a minimum density of 10-15kg/m2 and prevent any line of sight from the 

gardens to the track bed, unless otherwise agreed in writing. The exact specification and 
location of the fence shall be agreed in advance of its installation with the LPA and shall 

be maintained and retained thereafter for the lifetime of the development. 
 

REASON – In the interests of residential amenity. 
 
5. Prior to the occupation of any dwellings where it is required, as set out in the Wardell 

Armstrong Noise Impact Assessment (Reference:  GM13439 / Rev. 001 / FINAL, Report 
submitted with the application dated July 2024), enhanced acoustic glazing and 
ventilation measures shall be installed in the 1st and 2nd floors of properties shown on 
the Drawing Number GM13439/004 and Drawing Number GM13439/005 of the Wardell 

Armstrong Noise Impact Assessment (Reference:  GM13439 / Rev. 001 / FINAL, July 
2024),. This enhanced acoustic glazing, and ventilation must meet or exceed the noise 

reduction requirements set out in Table 8 of the Wardell Armstrong Noise Impact 
Assessment (Reference:  GM13439 / Rev. 001 / FINAL, July 2024), unless otherwise 

agreed in writing. 
 

REASON – In the interests of residential amenity. 

 

 
PA55 NOTIFICATION OF DECISION ON APPEALS 

 
 The Executive Director, Economy and Public Protection reported that the Inspectors 

appointed by the Secretary of State for the Environment had: 
 

a) Dismissed the appeal by Mr Andrew Verity against this authority’s decision to refuse 
permission for replacement and relocation of the boundary fence and additional 

hardstanding to front of dwelling (Retrospective Application) (Re submission) at 12 
Manor Road, Hurworth Place, Darlington (Ref No 24/00521/FUL). 

 
b) Dismissed the appeal by Mr William Porrett against an enforcement notice issued by 

Darlington Borough Council on 12 July 2024 for the breach of planning control as 

alleged in the notice is the unauthorised removal of approximately 25m of protected 
hedgerow, the installation of an authorised site access onto the land from Neasham 

Road, Hurworth, with the laying of hardcore materials to form an access road up to 
Brickyard Farm Cottage at Land on the north west side of Brickyard Farm Cottage, 

Neasham Road, Hurworth Moor, Darlington, DL2 1DL. 
 

RESOLVED – That the reports be received. 
 

PA56 TO CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 RESOLVED - That, pursuant to Sections 100A(4) and (5) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the ensuing item on the 

grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in exclusion 
paragraph 7 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 
PA57 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND BEING CONSIDERED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S APPROVED CODE 

Page 8



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

OF PRACTICE AS OF 28TH MARCH 2025 (EXCLUSION PARAGRAPH NO. 7) 

 
 Pursuant to Minute PA51/Mar/2025, the Executive Director, Economy and Public Protection 

submitted a report (previously circulated) detailing breaches of planning regulations 
investigated by this Council, as at 28 March 2025. 

 
RESOLVED - That the report be noted. 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

When the time comes for the application to be considered, the Chair will use the following 

running order:  

[This order may be varied at the Chair’s discretion, depending on the nature/complexity of 

the application. The Chair will endeavour, however, to ensure that the opportunity to make 

representations are made in a fair and balanced way.] 

• Chair introduces Agenda item;  

• Officer explains and advises Members regarding the proposal;  

• Applicant or agent may speak (to a maximum of five minutes);  

• Members may question applicant/agent;  

• Up to three objectors may speak (to a maximum of five minutes each); 

• Members may question objectors; 

• Up to three supporters may speak (to a maximum of five minutes each); 

• Members may question supporters; 

• Parish Council representative may speak (to a maximum of five minutes);  

• Members may question Parish Council representative;  

• Ward Councillor may speak (to a maximum of five minutes);  

• Officer summarises key planning issues;  

• Members may question Officers;  

• Objectors have right to reply;  

• Agent/Applicant has right to reply; 

• Officer makes final comments;  

• Members will debate the application before moving on to a decision;  

• Chair announces the decision. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

BOROUGH OF DARLINGTON 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

Committee Date – 7 May 2025 
 

SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Background Papers used in compiling this Schedule:- 
 
1)  Letters and memoranda in reply to consultations. 
2)  Letters of objection and representation from the public. 
 

 
Index of applications contained in this Schedule are as follows:- 
 

 
 

Address/Site Location 
 

Reference Number 

Land At 10 Chatsworth Terrace, Darlington, DL1 5DH 

 

24/01004/RM1 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

DARLINGTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 
 
COMMITTEE DATE:  7th May 2025   

 

 

 
APPLICATION REF. NO: 24/01004/RM1 

  
STATUTORY DECISION DATE: 9th December 2024 (EOT 9th May 2025) 

  
WARD/PARISH:  PARK EAST 

  
LOCATION:   Land At 10 Chatsworth Terrace, Darlington 

DL1 5DH 
  
DESCRIPTION: Application for reserved matters approval relating 

to access, appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale for the erection of 2 No. dwellings attached to 

outline permission 21/00797/OUT dated 29 
October 2021 (Outline planning permission with all 

matters reserved for residential development of up 
to 3 dwellings with all matters reserved) (Amended 

site / landscaping plan received 20th January 2025) 
  

APPLICANT: MR WELCH 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT RESERVED MATTERS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS (see details 
below) 
 

 
Application documents including application forms, submitted plans, supporting technical 

information, consultations responses and representations received, and other background 
papers are available on the Darlington Borough Council website via the following link:   

https://publicaccess.darlington.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=SLCRAOFPN1400 

 
APPLICATION AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
1. The application site is situated to the west side of Chatsworth Terrace, which lies in a 

predominantly residential area to the south of the town centre.  Allotments are situated 
immediately to the west and south of the site, to the north is the existing property of 10 
Chatsworth Terrace, a two-storey residential dwelling, and to the east is the highway, 

with neighbouring terraced dwelling houses beyond.  The Grade II registered Park and 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5(a)

https://publicaccess.darlington.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=SLCRAOFPN1400
https://publicaccess.darlington.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=SLCRAOFPN1400


 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

Garden, South Park, is situated to the south, beyond the allotments.   The immediate 

area consists of a mix of two storey, traditional terraced and semi-detached dwellings.  

2. Outline planning permission was granted in October 2021 (21/00797/OUT) with all 
matters reserved for residential development of up to 3 dwellings . 

 
3. A Reserved Matters application relating to appearance, landscaping, layout, access and 

scale for the erection of 3 No. dwellings (24/00076/RM1) was refused under delegated 
powers in June 2024 for the following reason: 
 
The proposal fails to provide adequate parking provision as required by condition on the 
outline approval.  The proposal, by reason of its scale, design, and appearance, fails to 
have regard to and respond positively to the local context and the character of the area 
and will have a resulting negative impact on the character and appearance of the street 
scene.  For the above reasons, the proposal conflicts with policies DC1 and IN4 of the 
Darlington Local Plan 2016-2036.  
 

4. Further to the above refusal, the applicant has reconsidered the proposal and now puts 
forward the current application for consideration, which includes a reduction in the 
number of dwellings to two semi-detached dwellings, to address the issues previously 
raised and to provide a development compliant with policy.  The application again seeks 
approval for appearance, landscaping, layout, access and scale, which are addressed in 
the following sections of this report. 
 

5. This submission is solely to consider those matters within the scope of condition 1 of the 
outline permission relating to access, layout, scale, appearance and landscaping. 17  
other conditions were attached to the outline consent dealing specifically with the 
following matters, and these are to be considered through the mechanism of discharge 
of condition applications at the appropriate time.     
 
i) Details of external materials. 
ii) Implementation of landscaping scheme. 
iii) Details of parking. 
iv) Details of in-curtilage parking spaces for 10 Chatsworth Terrace. 
v) Construction Management Plan 
vi) Standard construction / delivery time conditions. 
vii) Details of secure cycle parking and storage. 
viii) Phase 1 Preliminary Risk Assessment. 
ix) Phase 2 Site Investigation Strategy. 
x) Phase 2 Site Investigation Works. 

xi) Phase 3 Remediation and Verification Strategy. 
xii) Further contamination discovered during construction. 

xiii) Details of finished floor levels. 
xiv) Details of boundary treatment. 

xv) Details of measures to secure Biodiversity net gain. 
 

Page 16



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

6. Although the issues as covered by planning conditions are clearly interrelated, the 
separate mechanism to agree the technical details subject of the other planning 
conditions, should be noted and is not for specific consideration as part of the reserved 
matters submission and the discharge of these conditions should not prevent the 
approval of the reserved matters submission which deals solely with matters of access, 
layout, scale, appearance and landscaping. 

 
MAIN PLANNING ISSUES  
 

7. The issues for consideration relate only to the reserved matters set out in condition one 
of the outline planning permissions, (21/00797/OUT) under which the principle of the 
development of the site is established.  These are: 

 

a) Access  
b) Layout 

c) Scale 
d) Appearance 

e) Landscaping 
 

8. Interrelated with the above issues are the following consideration. 
 

f) Impact on heritage assets 
g) Residential Amenity 
 

9. In the light of the later issue of nutrient neutrality brought about by the designation of 
the Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast Special Protection Area, the following issue is also 
relevant. 
 
h) Nutrient Neutrality 

 

PLANNING POLICIES 
 

10. The site has outline consent as above and therefore the issue of the principle of the 
development is not for consideration.  The following policies are relevant in the 

determination of this application. 
 

National Design Guide (2019) 
Local Plan (2016-2036) 

SD1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
DC1: Sustainable Design Principles and Climate Change 

DC3: Health & Wellbeing 
DC4: Safeguarding Amenity 

ENV1: Darlington's Historic Environment (Strategic Policy) 
ENV3: Local Landscape Character 

ENV7: Biodiversity & Geodiversity & Development 

ENV8: Assessing a Development’s Impact on Biodiversity 

Page 17



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

IN4: Parking Provision including Electric Vehicle Charging 
 

Design of New Development Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2011) 

 
RESULTS OF TECHNICAL CONSULTATION  
 

11. No objections in principle have been raised by the Council’s Highways Engineer, 
Transport Policy Officer Environmental Health Officer, Ecologist and Natural England, 
subject to conditions. 

 
RESULTS OF PUBLICITY AND NOTIFICATION 
 

12. Four objections have been received from residents raising the following concerns: 
 
 Impact on residential amenity, loss of light to outdoor areas, impact on privacy, noise 

pollution. 
 Highway safety / parking issues. 

 Impact on heritage assets. 
 Impact on character of the area. 

 Impact on ecology. 

 Flooding issues. 
 Construction disruption. 

 
13. Other matters raised regarding impact on value of property and restriction of views are 

not material planning considerations and have therefore not been taken into account in 
the consideration of this proposal.  Also raised is the issue of potential damage to 
foundations.  This is noted however there is no evidence to suggest that this will occur, 
and this matter can be adequately dealt with by other mechanisms including the Building 
Regulations and the Party Wall Act. 

 
PLANNING ISSUES/ANALYSIS 
 

a) Access 

 
14. Access in planning legislation is defined as the accessibility to and within the site, for 

vehicles, cycles and pedestrians in terms of the positioning and treatment of access and 
circulation routes and how these fit into the surrounding access network; where “site”  

means the site or part of the site in respect of which outline planning permission is 

granted or, as the case may be, in respect of which an application for such a permission 
has been made. 

 
15. Access to the site is taken from Chatsworth Terrace, which is consistent with the outline 

permission and the other properties in the locality.  
 

16. Having considered the previously refused proposal from a Highway Safety perspective i t 
was apparent that the constraints of the site were only able to accommodate a 

Page 18



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

maximum of two dwellings without being prejudicial to the discharge of other specific 
conditions, particularly those related to in curtilage parking provision. (Conditions 6 & 7 
of outline approval 21/00797/OUT) require that adequate parking is provided for both 
the new dwellings and to ensure adequate parking for No 10 Chatsworth Terrace. 
 

17.  The Highways Engineer is now satisfied that the revised RM submission is not prejudicial 
to the discharge of Conditions 6 & 7.  An issue was raised by the adjacent landowner 
regarding land ownership which may have prevented the discharge of the above 
conditions, however the applicant has provided information to demonstrate that they 
are in control of the land concerned and therefore that the relevant conditions are 
capable of being discharged.   
 

18. It is noted that cycle parking is conditioned as part of the original outline consent so is 

not for consideration as part of this planning application but instead will be dealt with by 
discharge of the relevant planning conditions at the appropriate time. 

 
19. In conclusion, officers consider the details of access to the development is acceptable, 

compliant with the outline consent and the relevant policies as set out above.    
 

b) Layout 
 

20. Layout in planning legislation is defined as the way in which buildings, routes and open 
spaces within the development are provided, situated, and orientated in relation to each 
other and to buildings and spaces outside of the development.   
 

21. The orientation of the dwellings and the related open space reflects the layout and 
orientation of nearby buildings and open spaces.  As above, the amended scheme 
demonstrates how the applicant intends to address the parking requirements subject of 
condition 7.   

 

22. In conclusion, officers consider the layout of the development is compliant with the 
outline consent and promotes a high-quality design that responds appropriately to the 

character of the area, in accordance with the policies listed above.     
 

c) Scale 
 

23. Scale, in planning legislation, is defined as the height, width and length of each building 
proposed within the development in relation to its surroundings. 

 
24. The scale of the proposed development is now considered to be sympathetic to its 

surroundings.  The height of the new dwellings are consistent with those immediately 
adjacent to the site and the depth is acceptable, broadly consistent with other plots in 

the locality.  Whilst deeper than the plot immediately adjacent, the depth proposed is 
within acceptable limits.  The dwellings will sit comfortably within their surroundings and 

will have an acceptable impact on the visual amenities of the locality.  
 

Page 19



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

25. In conclusion, officers consider the scale of the development is acceptable and promotes 
a high-quality design that responds appropriately to the character of the area, in 
accordance with the policies listed above.  

 
d) Appearance 

 
26. Appearance, in planning legislation, is defined as the aspects of a building or place within 

the development which determine the visual impression the building or place makes, 
including the external built form of the development, its architecture, materials, 
decoration, lighting, colour and texture. 
 

27. Elevations have been provided which demonstrate the external appearance of the 
proposed dwellings.  The amended proposal now has regard to context in terms of 

design and appearance of nearby dwellings, such that the structures will now sit 
comfortably within the street scene.  The proposal includes pitched roof with forward 

projecting two storey gables with exposed cills and lintels.  External materials in terms of 
the brick type and roof tiles, were required by virtue of condition 4 of the outline 

approval and so will be considered via this separate mechanism at the appropriate time.   
 

28. In conclusion, officers consider the appearance of the development is acceptable, 
promoting a high-quality design that responds appropriately to the character of the area 

in accordance with the relevant policies as set out above. 
 

e) Landscaping 
 

29. Landscaping, in planning legislation, is defined as the treatment of land (other than 
buildings) for the purpose of enhancing or protecting the amenities of the site and the 
area in which it is situated and includes: screening by fences, walls or other means; the 
planting of trees, hedges, shrubs, or grass; the formation of banks, terraces or other 

earthworks; the laying out or provision of gardens, courts, squares, water features, 

sculpture or public art; and, the provision of other amenity features. 
 

30. The proposal has sought to provide some landscaping to the front in the form of box 
hedging, to soften the development within the street scene.  Whilst this is limited in 

terms of its amount, this is due to the need to provide parking provision and is 
proportionate.   

 
31. Amenity space to the rear garden is provided, which includes the planting of 7 No. native 

trees and shrubs and a native hedge which includes Hawthorn, Blackthorn, Alder, Cherry 
and Spindle.  The landscaping scheme was submitted alongside a basic management 

plan.  Integral bird and Bat boxes are also proposed.  
 

32. The proposed landscaping scheme is considered appropriate and proportionate to the 
development proposed.  

 

Page 20



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

33. Details of boundary treatment are included within the submitted plans; these are shown 
as a 1.8m high hedgehog friendly timber fence to the rear / side amenity areas.  The 
details of boundary treatment were required by virtue of condition 19 of the outline 
approval and so final details of these will be dealt with via that separate mechanism, 
however the proposed boundary treatment is considered appropriate. 

 

34. In conclusion, officers consider the landscaping of the development is acceptable, 
offering suitable mitigation and promoting a high-quality design that responds 
appropriately to the character of the area in accordance with the relevant policies as set 
out above. 

 
f) Impact on heritage assets 

 
35. To south of the site lies the Grade II Registered Park and Garden, South Park.  At outline 

stage, the principle of a development on the site was established.  Due to the limited 
visibility of the site and the nature of the site within an existing built-up area of which the 
development will be seen in the context of, it is not considered that the proposal would 
have a harmful impact on heritage assets.  This position is reinforced by the significant 
amendments made to the previously refused scheme, in terms of scale, design and 
appearance, which allow the buildings to sit comfortably within their surroundings.   
 

36. In view of the above, the proposed development is acceptable in terms of impact on 
heritage assets and is in accordance with the relevant policies as set out above. 

 
g) Residential amenity 

 
37. Officers consider the position and orientation of the proposed dwellings, and the degree 

of separation between properties both within, and existing dwellings out with the 
development site, to be acceptable and in accordance with the guidance set out in the 
Design SPD.  It is noted that the introduction of new dwellings will create some 
intervisibility between rear amenity areas, however this is normal within a residential 
area, and replicates the situation with other nearby sites , and although there is a 
difference in ground levels, lower level intervisibility can be adequately controlled 

through appropriate boundary treatment as part of the relevant planning condition.  
Also noted is that the new dwellings are deeper than those most closely related to the 
north.  This is mitigated by the degree of separation between the dwellings and is again 

considered to be within acceptable limits.  
 

38. Issues of land contamination and construction impacts were covered by planning 
conditions on the outline permission and will be dealt with by the separate mechanism 

of a discharge of condition application at the appropriate time. 
 

39. In view of the above, the proposal would not result in harm to the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers or future occupiers of the proposed dwellings, in accordance 

with the relevant polices listed above.  
 

Page 21



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

h) Nutrient Neutrality 
 

40. The application site is located within the River Tees  Catchment Area and is therefore 
subject to the guidance issued by Natural England on the 16th of March 2022 in respect 
of the unfavourable condition of the Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast Special Protection 
Area (SPA), Ramsar Site and associated Sites of Special Scientific Interest.   

 
41. The Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast protected area is a wetland habitat comprising an 

area of complex of coastal habitats centred on the Tees estuary and include habitats 
such as sandflats, mudflats, rocky foreshore, saltmarsh, sand dunes, wet grassland and 
freshwater lagoons. These habitats support internationally important populations of 
breeding and nonbreeding waterbirds including but not limited to breeding Little Tern 
(A195), passage Sandwich Tern (A191), wintering Red Knot (A143), Redshank (A162) and 

Ringed Plover (A136) as well as a significant assemblage of wintering waterbirds and high 
density of benthic invertebrates. 

 
42. The Conservation objectives for the SPA are to ensure that the integrity of the site is  

maintained or restored as appropriate, and ensure that the site contributes to achieving the 
aims of the Wild Birds Directive, by maintaining or restoring; 

 
- The extent and distribution of the habitats of the qualifying features  

- The structure and function of the habitats of the qualifying features 
- The supporting processes on which the habitats of the qualifying features rely 
- The population of each of the qualifying features, and, 
- The distribution of the qualifying features within the site. 

 
43. The Natural England Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast Special Protection Area/Ramsar 

Evidence Pack August 2022 (TIN204) confirms that this protected area is currently in an 
unfavourable condition due to nutrient enrichment, which includes pollution from 

nitrates, including Nitrogen. 

 
44. Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2017) requires   

Darlington Borough Council (as the Competent Authority) prior to giving permission for 
any plan/project that is likely to have a significant effect on a European site (either alone 

or in combination with other plans/projects) to undertake an appropriate assessment of 
the implications of the plan/project for that site in view of that site’s conservation 

objectives. 
 

45. Regulation 75 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2017) also states 
that it is a condition of any planning permission granted by a general development order 

made on or after 30th November 2017, that development which is likely to have a 
significant effect on a European site or a European offshore marine site (either alone or 

in combination with other plans or projects), and is not directly connected with or 
necessary to the management of the site, must not be begun until the developer has 

received written notification of the approval of the local planning authority. 

 

Page 22



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

Population Growth and Average Occupancy Rate 
 

46. During the introduction of Nutrient Neutrality into the River Tees catchment in March 
2022. Natural England’s guidance recommends that, as a starting point, local planning 
authorities should consider using the average national occupancy rate of 2.4 persons per 
dwelling as calculated by the Office for National Statistics (ONS). A standard calculator 
produced by Natural England works off such an assumption. 

 
47. On behalf of the Tees Catchment, Stockton on Tees Borough Council commissioned ORS 

to consider the weight to be placed on that assumption and prepare a local evidence-
based review of the relationship between population growth and provision of new 
homes within the River Tees catchment to ensure that a suitable robust and evidence-
based approach can be taken. 

 
48. Based on local evidence, ORS concluded that the resident population living in the Tees 

Catchment increased by 24,800 persons over the intercensal period 2011 to 2021 and 
the housing stock increased by 41,000 dwellings, equivalent to an average gain of 0.60 

persons per dwelling across the area. Allowing for natural population change and a 
reduction of residents living in communal accommodation this increased the average to 

0.71 persons per dwelling.  
 

49. Justification is given by ORS that within the Tees catchment, many of the people 
occupying new homes would have already been residents living within the local area and 
would therefore not have added to the number of people living in the area. Had these 
new homes not been provided, it is unlikely that this would have had any material 
impact on the natural population change – there would still have been broadly the same 
number of births and deaths recorded over the decade.  

 
50. However, despite the internal migration within the Tees catchment, it is also 

acknowledged that there is variation between each authority and therefore an individual 

figure will be adopted by each of the various Tees Catchment Authorities.   
 

Local population growth in Darlington  
 

51. In determining the figure to be used to assess population growth arising from new 
dwellings with Darlington Borough, the Local Planning Authority has been mindful of the 

requirement of the Habitat Regulations and the need to employ a precautionary 
approach to ensure that the methodology taken is both reasonable and would prevent 

an impact on the SPA.  
 

52. Although it is noted that within the 2011-2021 baseline period each new dwelling within 
Darlington yielded an average of 0.64 persons per dwelling, applying a sensitivity test of 

+10% would increase that growth to a figure of 0.77 (figures 7 and 8 of the ORS report) 
which is less precautionary than the adopted Local Plan’s gain over the Plan period of 

0.98 persons per dwelling.  

 

Page 23



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

53. The research shows that for the Borough if we used the baseline period of 2011-2021 it 
would show an increase of 0.64, whilst the highest 5-year average would show an 
increase of 1.1 per dwelling. Due to the recent accelerated growth, which was partly 
down to a period of constraint, suggests the highest 5-year average is not a resilient 
figure and a more appropriate approach would be to use the recently adopted annual 
housing requirement as indicated in the Local Plan which indicates a gain of 0.98 persons 
per dwelling.  

 
54. Consequently, rather than simply apply a 10% buffer to the average population growth, 

Darlington Borough Council have in line with the Habitat Regulations opted to follow a 
precautionary approach (which will be subject to future reviews) and have resolved to 
use the figure of 0.98 persons per dwelling derived from the ‘adopted annual housing 
requirement’ in the Darlington Borough Local Plan with a 10% buffer applied.  

 
55. It is considered that such as approach gives a robust evidenced based approach and that 

a local population growth figure of 1.1 persons per dwelling for Darlington is more 
appropriate than Natural England’s ‘starting point’ of 2.4 persons per new dwelling.   

 
Screening assessment 

 
56. The Screening Assessment requires the Local Planning Authority as the Competent 

Authority to consider and conclude whether the potential for likely significant effects to 
the Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast SPA/Ramsar designated features can be excluded 
for this planning application. If they cannot, the LPA must make an Appropriate 
Assessment (AA) of the implications of the development for that site, in consideration of 
the affected sites conservation objectives.  

 
57. The information required to enable the LPA to undertake the screening assessment and 

where necessary appropriate assessment is provided by: 

 

 Nutrient Budget Calculator (18 November 2024) 
 Nutrient Neutrality Assessment (18 November 2024) 

 Nitrate Assessment MoU (13 November 2024) 
 Nitrate Allocation Agreement (13 November 2024) 

 Habitat Management Plan (13 November 2024) 
 Section 106 Agreement – Mitigation Land (30 January 2025)  

 Agents Responses to Nutrients Queries (13 December 2024) 
 

58. This information provided by the applicant is now considered sufficient to enable the 
Local Planning Authority as the Competent Authority to fully consider the impacts of the 

development proposal on Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast SPA/Ramsar. 
 

59. The submitted nutrient budget calculator demonstrates that the proposals will increase 
the nitrogen arising from the development and consequently it cannot be ruled out at 

the screening stage that this development will not have a likely significant effect on the 
Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast SPA/Ramsar. An appropriate assessment needs to be 

Page 24



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

undertaken. Mitigation measures cannot be considered at the Screening Stage but 
should be considered as part of an Appropriate Assessment. 

 
Appropriate Assessment 

 
60. The applicant has used Natural England’s Nutrient Budget Calculator tool for the River 

Tees catchment to establish a nutrient budget for the proposal. Following consideration 
and amendment the assumptions and inputs used by the applicant within this calculator 
are now considered satisfactory and are an accurate reflection of the site and its 
location.  

 
61. This proposal for 2 net additional dwellings would increase the total annual nitrogen 

load arising by 3.12kg per year. 

 
62. As a nitrogen surplus would arise, the applicant has accepted that mitigation would be 

necessary to avoid likely significant effects. Informed by the Nutrient Budget Calculator 
Tool the applicant proposes to mitigate this nitrogen surplus by; 

 
63. Purchasing 3.12 credits from a Nutrient Mitigation Land Scheme run by Biomark which is 

equivalent to the surplus nitrogen of 3.12kg that needs to be mitigated. The applicant 
has provided a Nitrate Allocation Agreement obtained from Biomark confirming the 

reservation of the credits solely for the applicant. They have also provided a 
Memorandum of Understanding identifying the particular area of mitigation land to be 
used for this proposal along with the Section 106 agreement which legally secures the 
lands use for mitigation purposes along with the Habitat Management and Monitoring 
Plan setting out how the land will be monitored and managed to ensure the land 
continues to mitigate the impact of the development proposal in perpetuity.  

 
64. Following detailed consideration of this information it is now considered sufficient 

evidence has been provided to confirm this particular mitigation proposed is robust and 

achievable and appropriately located within the Tees catchment. A pre-occupation 
condition will be required to ensure that the required and necessary mitigation is 

secured and in place. This should set out that prior to the occupation of the proposed 
dwellings the countersigned Final Allocation Agreement needs to be provided to the 

Local Planning Authority demonstrating that the credits have been purchased and the 
necessary mitigation secured and is in place. 

 
65. The Competent Authority considers this a form of mitigation in keeping with Natural 

England guidance.  
 

Appropriate Assessment Conclusion 
 

66. This assessment has found that the proposed mitigation measures would adequately 
mitigate the effects of the proposal and ensure the proposed development will not 

result in an increase in nitrogen reaching the Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast SPA.  

 

Page 25



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

67. So, it can be concluded that the proposal will not adversely affect the integrity of the 
Teesmouth and Cleveland Coast SPA and meets the relevant Habitat Regulations, subject 
to conditions as set out above. 

 
68. Prior to issuing a decision on this application in accordance with regulation 63 of the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2017) Natural England must be 
consulted on this Screening and Appropriate Assessment. A response must then be 
received from Natural England confirming they have no objection to the proposed 
development provided that all mitigation measures are appropriately secured in any 
planning permission.   This process has now been completed and the ‘no objection’ 
received from Natural England. 

 
THE PUBLIC-SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 

 
69. In considering this application the Local Planning Authority has complied with Section 

149 of the Equality Act 2010 which places a statutory duty on public authorities in the 
exercise of their functions to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination 

and advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.   

 

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

70. The RMA is submitted to discharge the Condition 1 requirement and has been made in 
full accordance with the parameters set out in the Outline Consent, including the 

approved plans. The proposed details in respect of access, layout, scale, appearance and 
landscaping, are considered to be acceptable and in accordance with the relevant 

policies as set out above.   
 

71. Accordingly, it is recommended that reserved matters relating to details of access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale pursuant to outline planning permission 

21/00797OUT BE APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Unless otherwise confirmed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the development 
hereby approved should be carried out in accordance with the following plans:  

 
R301 S10A Site location plan 

R301 SK200D Site plan / landscaping 
R301 SK201B  Proposed floor plans 

R301 SK210 Proposed elevations 

REASON - To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the planning 

permission.  

2. Prior to the first occupation of the development, written confirmation, in the form of a 

countersigned Final Allocation Notice or otherwise, that 3.12 Nutrient Credits have 
been purchased shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 26



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL. 

 

REASON - To ensure the development is nutrient neutral in accordance with        

the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



6
0 46.0m

1

5
8

5
7

1
0
6

9
4

C
L
IF
T
O
N
R
O
A
D

11
3

8
0

11
1

7
8

45.4m

9
7

6
8

8
5

8
3

7
9

8
1

LEAFIELD ROAD

2
7
a

6
9

MILNER ROAD

2
7

2
5

2
0

B
E
LV
E
D
E
R

2

1
5

1
3
3

4
6

4
7

1
3
1

4
4

4
5

1
2
3

3
3

2
8

1
4
1

1
4
3

1

5
4

42.1m

15

5
5

HEN

2

4 6

ROSLYN STREET

39

28

3 4

2 7

P
ar
k
D
en
e

1
0

29

4
B
ri
ar
D
en
e

4
7

C
H
A
T
S
W
O
R
T
H
T
E
R
R
A
C
E

2 2

3 9

40

3
5

1
2
8

1
3
0

38.4m

2

2
3

1
3
8

11
8

20a

2
1

40.5m

1
0
8

1
3

2
6 B
E
D
FO
R
D
S
TR
E
E
T

11
6

69

11
4

3
1

2
9

67

10
4

2
7

63

6 2

2
5 2

5 8

57

36.3m

Track

49

Gardens

Allotment

14

1 3

3

2
3

4
5 9

4
8
8

2
1

Planning Ref No: 24/01004/RM1

DARLINGTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

© Crown copyright  All Rights Reserved  Licence Number 100023728  2025

SCALE 1:1250
Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on 9 April 2025
	4 Introduction to Procedure by the Assistant Director, Law and Governance's Representative
	5 Applications for Planning Permission and Other Consents under the Town and Country Planning Act and Associated Legislation
	5(a) Land at 10 Chatsworth Terrace, Darlington, DL1 5DH
	Agenda_Location_Plan_24_01004_RM1

	9 Complaints Received and Being Considered Under the Council's Approved Code of Practice as of 28 April 2025 (Exclusion Paragraph No. 7)
	Item 11 - Planning_Enforcement_Report


